


 
 

NOTE 
This information is also provided in IFALPA Briefing Leaflet, 23LEGBL01, called Sample 
Guidelines for Member Associations in the Event of a Pilot Being Arrested in a Foreign 
Country. 
 
IFALPA provides this data for information only. In all cases pilots should follow their 
company’s guidance and procedures. It includes legal advice in case of accident, 
incident, or operating irregularity. 
 
CAUTION 
These are general guidelines; they may not be applicable in every situation. Individual 
discretion and decisions contrary to these guidelines may be required in some 
situations. 
 
IN THE EVENT OF CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS GUIDANCE AND YOUR COMPANY 
GUIDANCE, YOUR COMPANY GUIDANCE TAKES PRECEDENCE. 
 
You are ALWAYS subject to the laws of the country that you are in, NOT the laws of your 
country of residence or citizenship. In the event of an accident, incident or operating 
irregularity, you may be questioned or even detained by the local authorities. You may 
also be subject to enforcement and/or disciplinary action(s) by the local government 
and/or your employer. 
 
To minimize the likelihood of adverse consequences, the guidance below should be 
followed to the extent possible. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
While a pilot may assume it could never happen to them, arrest by the police of a 
foreign State is always a possibility. This could happen for several reasons, including 
alcohol consumption or other offences or in relation to an incident or accident, real or 
alleged. It is important to be prepared and aware of what actions can be taken and how 
to instruct your members beforehand on how to react in these circumstances (i.e. 
instructions card).  
 
This Briefing Leaflet provides guidelines for both the Member Association and the 
individual pilot on how to deal with a pilot arrest. These instructions that can also be 
provided to pilots directly. 
 
 
 



MEMBER ASSOCIATION ACTIONS 
• Upon receiving a call for assistance, contact the local pilots’ association of the 

country where your pilot has been arrested and ask for their assistance in getting 
your pilot released and out of the country as soon as possible. If the local pilots’ 
association can’t help you, search for local legal counsel. 

 
o If you cannot reach the local pilots’ association, contact the             

IFALPA Emergency Number +44 1202 653 110 
 

• Notify the pilot’s airline and ask for any assistance they can provide. If the airline has 
already been informed, exchange information about the actions that have been 
planned and committed to. Try to coordinate with them as much as possible. 

 
• Notify the pilot’s family about what has happened. Advise them not to talk to the 

media, and if media are at their home, to relocate as soon as possible to an unknown 
location to avoid media scrutiny for the time being. 

 
• Do not speak to the media about the incident. If you have media specialists, inform 

them of the situation as soon as possible so they can manage all media contact. 
 

• If you are unable to reach anyone for assistance, contact the nearest embassy or 
consulate and ask for help. 

 
• The goal is to get the pilot released and out of the country as soon as possible. 

Everything possible should be done to achieve that goal.  
 

• If the pilot is released but their passport has been confiscated, arrange for 
accommodation until they can return home. If there are visits while the pilot is being 
held: be aware which items are and are not allowed inside. 

 
• If practicable send a representative from the home association immediately to assist 

the pilot at their location with morale, technical, welfare, legal, and, if necessary, 
financial support. Try to find an interpreter if there is a language barrier. 
 

• If you are in contact with the pilot inform them of any concrete actions being taken. 
Be factual, make no assumptions or unconfirmed statements, give tips for physical 
and mental well-being, try to keep the crew together. 
 

• Also consider providing the pilot with assistance even if they’re not a member of 
your MA (general pilot interest/solidarity). 



IN ADVANCE 
Create an instruction card/booklet within your MA as a guide to assisting pilots. Also 
create an instruction card/booklet for your pilot members on what to do in case of 
arrest. Many MAs developed instruction cards/booklets on what to do in case of 
incident/accident and/or arrest.  

Suggested elements to include in an instruction card/booklet 

1. Comply with the orders of the police/authority and politely ask why you are being 
detained. If they question you or you test positive for drugs or alcohol and they ask 
you if you have been drinking or question you about your conduct, politely inform 
them that you’re willing to fully cooperate but that you do not want to make any 
statements until you have spoken to a lawyer. 
 

2. Request to speak to a lawyer. If compelled to make a statement prior to speaking to 
a lawyer, as an interim measure, use the sample statement contained herein. If you 
are required to provide a blood or urine sample, ask for a split sample. Ask to retain 
one sample for your own independent testing. 

 
3. Contact your Home Association’s incident hotline as soon as possible and tell them 

you need immediate assistance. If you cannot reach your Home Association, call the 
IFALPA Emergency Number +44 1202 653 110 and ask for assistance. Provide the 
following information: 

• Your name and company 
• Your location 
• What you are charged with by the police 
• Names and location of other crew members 
• Inform them that you need a lawyer and help being released 
• Your medical and health condition 

 
4. The sooner you contact your Association and/or your employer, the sooner you can 

get the support you need. If you are provided with a lawyer and/or a representative, 
you should verify their identity before speaking to them. 
 

5. Ensure that you are well rested and cared for before proceeding with an interview of 
any kind. 
 



6. Do not volunteer information and do not speculate on possible contributing factors 
in any way. 
 

7. Never sign a statement if it is not written in a language that you understand, and 
you have received legal advice about it. 
 

8. You may insist that no recorders will be used. 
 

9. Avoid taking notes. 

 
After an incident/accident 
10. Complete your tasks 
11. Ask for medical help and treatment, if necessary 
12. Arrange crew care 
13. Contact your employer 
14. Contact your MA or IFALPA Emergency Number +44 1202 653 110 
15. Follow points 1 to 10 

 

SAMPLE STATEMENT 

I, _____________ am employed as a pilot by __________airline and am based in _________. I 
am a citizen of ________________ and reside at ____________. I do not wish to make any 
statement until I have spoken to a lawyer. 

Please contact the ___________ Embassy and inform them that you have arrested me and 
let me contact my Pilot Association and/or my airline for assistance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
©2023 The International Federation of Air Line Pilots’ Associations. This publication is provided for information purposes only, in all 
cases pilots should follow their company’s guidance and procedures. In the interest of flight safety, reproduction of this publication in 
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IFALPA Legal Directory  
2023 

Contents 
AFGHANISTAN ................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

ALBANIA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

ALGERIA .............................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

ANDORRA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

ANGOLA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

ANGUILLA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

ANTIGUA & BARBUDA .................................................................................................................................................. 8 

ARGENTINA ....................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

ARMENIA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

ARUBA ................................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

AUSTRALIA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

AUSTRIA ........................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

AZERBAIJAN ................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

BAHAMAS ....................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

BAHRAIN ......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

BANGLADESH ................................................................................................................................................................ 12 

BARBADOS...................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

BELARUS .......................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

BELGIUM .......................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

BELIZE ............................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

BENIN................................................................................................................................................................................ 14 

BERMUDA ....................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

BHUTAN ........................................................................................................................................................................... 14 

BOLIVIA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA .................................................................................................................................. 15 

BOTSWANA .................................................................................................................................................................... 15 



BRAZIL .............................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS .......................................................................................................................................... 16 

BRUNEI DARUSSALAM ............................................................................................................................................... 16 

BULGARIA ........................................................................................................................................................................ 17 

BURKINA FASO ............................................................................................................................................................. 17 

BURUNDI ......................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

CABO VERDE .................................................................................................................................................................. 17 

CAMBODIA ..................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

CAMEROON ................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

CANADA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

CAYMAN ISLANDS ....................................................................................................................................................... 19 

CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC ................................................................................................................................. 19 

CHAD ................................................................................................................................................................................ 19 

CHILE ................................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

CHINA ............................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

CHINA, HONG KONG, SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION ........................................................................ 20 

CHINA, MACAU, SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION.................................................................................... 21 

COLOMBIA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

COMOROS ...................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

CONGO ............................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

CONGO, DEMOCRATIC REGPULIC OF.................................................................................................................. 22 

COOK ISLANDS ............................................................................................................................................................. 22 

COSTA RICA ................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

CÔTE D’IVOIRE .............................................................................................................................................................. 23 

CROATIA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 23 

CUBA ................................................................................................................................................................................. 23 

CURAÇAO ........................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

CYPRUS ............................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

CZECH REPUBLIC .......................................................................................................................................................... 24 

DENMARK ....................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

DJIBOUTI .......................................................................................................................................................................... 25 



DOMINICA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC .............................................................................................................................................. 26 

EASTERN CARIBBEAN STATES ................................................................................................................................. 26 

ECUADOR ........................................................................................................................................................................ 26 

EGYPT ................................................................................................................................................................................ 27 

EL SALVADOR ................................................................................................................................................................ 27 

EQUATORIAL GUINEA ................................................................................................................................................ 27 

ERITREA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 28 

ESTONIA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

ETHOPIA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

FIJI ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

FINLAND .......................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

FRANCE ............................................................................................................................................................................ 30 

GABON ............................................................................................................................................................................. 30 

GAMBIA............................................................................................................................................................................ 31 

GEORGIA.......................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

GERMANY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

GHANA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 32 

GIBRALTAR ...................................................................................................................................................................... 32 

GREECE ............................................................................................................................................................................. 32 

GRENADA ........................................................................................................................................................................ 32 

GUATEMALA .................................................................................................................................................................. 33 

GUERNSEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 33 

GUINEA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 33 

GUINEA-BISSAU ............................................................................................................................................................ 33 

GUYANA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 33 

HAITI ................................................................................................................................................................................. 34 

HONDURAS .................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

HUNGARY ....................................................................................................................................................................... 34 

ICELAND .......................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

INDIA ................................................................................................................................................................................ 35 



INDONESIA ..................................................................................................................................................................... 36 

IRAN, (ISLAMIC REPULBIC OF) ................................................................................................................................ 36 

IRAQ .................................................................................................................................................................................. 36 

IRELAND .......................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

ISLE OF MAN (DT) ........................................................................................................................................................ 37 

ISRAEL ............................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

ITALY ................................................................................................................................................................................. 38 

JAMAICA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 38 

JAPAN ............................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

JERSEY............................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

JORDAN ........................................................................................................................................................................... 39 

KAZAKHSTAN ................................................................................................................................................................ 40 

KENYA ............................................................................................................................................................................... 40 

KIRIBATI ........................................................................................................................................................................... 41 

KOREA, (SOUTH) ........................................................................................................................................................... 41 

KUWAIT ............................................................................................................................................................................ 42 

KYRGYZSTAN ................................................................................................................................................................. 42 

LAO PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC ........................................................................................................................................... 42 

LATVIA .............................................................................................................................................................................. 42 

LEBANON ........................................................................................................................................................................ 43 

LESOTHO ......................................................................................................................................................................... 43 

LIBERIA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 43 

LIBYA ................................................................................................................................................................................. 43 

LITHUANIA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

LUXEMBOURG ............................................................................................................................................................... 44 

MADAGASCAR .............................................................................................................................................................. 44 

MALAWI ........................................................................................................................................................................... 45 

MALAYSIA ....................................................................................................................................................................... 45 

MALDIVES ....................................................................................................................................................................... 45 

MALI .................................................................................................................................................................................. 46 

MALTA .............................................................................................................................................................................. 46 



MARSHALL ISLANDS ................................................................................................................................................... 46 

MAURITANIA ................................................................................................................................................................. 47 

MAURITIUS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 47 

MEXICO ............................................................................................................................................................................ 48 

MICRONESIA, (FEDERATED STATES OF) .............................................................................................................. 48 

MOLDOVA, REPUBLIC OF.......................................................................................................................................... 48 

MONACO ........................................................................................................................................................................ 49 

MONGOLIA ..................................................................................................................................................................... 49 

MONTENEGRO .............................................................................................................................................................. 49 

MONTSERRAT................................................................................................................................................................ 50 

MOROCCO ...................................................................................................................................................................... 50 

MOZAMBIQUE .............................................................................................................................................................. 50 

MYANMAR ...................................................................................................................................................................... 50 

NAMIBIA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

NAURU ............................................................................................................................................................................. 51 

NEPAL ............................................................................................................................................................................... 51 

NETHERLANDS .............................................................................................................................................................. 52 

NEW ZEALAND .............................................................................................................................................................. 52 

NICARAGUA ................................................................................................................................................................... 53 

NIGER ................................................................................................................................................................................ 53 

NIGERIA ........................................................................................................................................................................... 53 

NORTH MACEDONIA ................................................................................................................................................. 53 

NORWAY ......................................................................................................................................................................... 54 

OMAN ............................................................................................................................................................................... 54 

PAKISTAN ........................................................................................................................................................................ 54 

PALAU ............................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

PANAMA.......................................................................................................................................................................... 55 

PAPUA NEW GUINEA .................................................................................................................................................. 55 

PARAGUAY...................................................................................................................................................................... 56 

PERU .................................................................................................................................................................................. 56 

PHILIPPINES .................................................................................................................................................................... 56 



POLAND ........................................................................................................................................................................... 57 

PORTUGAL ...................................................................................................................................................................... 57 

QATAR .............................................................................................................................................................................. 57 

ROMANIA ........................................................................................................................................................................ 58 

RUSSIAN FEDERATION ............................................................................................................................................... 58 

RWANDA ......................................................................................................................................................................... 58 

SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS ........................................................................................................................................... 59 

SAINT LUCIA................................................................................................................................................................... 59 

SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES ............................................................................................................ 59 

SAMOA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 59 

SAN MARINO................................................................................................................................................................. 59 

SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE ....................................................................................................................................... 59 

SAUDI ARABIA ............................................................................................................................................................... 60 

SENEGAL .......................................................................................................................................................................... 60 

SERBIA .............................................................................................................................................................................. 60 

SEYCHELLES .................................................................................................................................................................... 61 

SIERRA LEONE ............................................................................................................................................................... 61 

SINGAPORE .................................................................................................................................................................... 61 

SLOVAKIA ........................................................................................................................................................................ 62 

SLOVENIA ........................................................................................................................................................................ 62 

SOLOMON ISLANDS ................................................................................................................................................... 62 

SOMALIA ......................................................................................................................................................................... 63 

SOUTH AFRICA .............................................................................................................................................................. 63 

SPAIN ................................................................................................................................................................................ 64 

SRI LANKA ....................................................................................................................................................................... 64 

ST. HELENA ..................................................................................................................................................................... 64 

SUDAN ............................................................................................................................................................................. 65 

SURINAME ...................................................................................................................................................................... 65 

SWAZILAND ................................................................................................................................................................... 65 

SWEDEN........................................................................................................................................................................... 65 

SWITZERLAND ............................................................................................................................................................... 66 



SYRIA ................................................................................................................................................................................. 66 

TAJIKISTAN ..................................................................................................................................................................... 66 

TANZANIA, UNITED REPUBLIC OF ......................................................................................................................... 67 

THAILAND ....................................................................................................................................................................... 67 

TIMOR-LESTE ................................................................................................................................................................. 67 

TOGO ................................................................................................................................................................................ 68 

TONGA ............................................................................................................................................................................. 68 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO .......................................................................................................................................... 68 

TUNISIA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 69 

TURKEY ............................................................................................................................................................................. 69 

TURKMENISTAN ........................................................................................................................................................... 69 

TURKS AND CAICOS ................................................................................................................................................... 70 

UGANDA .......................................................................................................................................................................... 70 

UKRAINE .......................................................................................................................................................................... 70 

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES .......................................................................................................................................... 71 

UNITED KINGDOM ...................................................................................................................................................... 71 

UNITED STATES ............................................................................................................................................................. 72 

URUGUAY ........................................................................................................................................................................ 72 

UZBEKISTAN ................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

VANUATU ........................................................................................................................................................................ 73 

VENEZUELA .................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

VIETNAM ......................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

YEMEN .............................................................................................................................................................................. 73 

ZAMBIA ............................................................................................................................................................................ 74 

ZIMBABWE ...................................................................................................................................................................... 74 

 
 

 

 



AFGHANISTAN 
President of Civil Aviation Operations 
Ministry of Civil Aviation and Tourism 
Ansari Watt, P.O. Box 165 
Kabul, Afghanistan 
Tel: +873 68 2341450 / 49 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
ALBANIA 
Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure 
National Investigation Body of Accident/Incident in Civil Aviation (OKIIA) 
3, Rruga, Princ Vidi 
P.O. Box 74, Tirana, Albania 
Tel.: +355 47 203-686 
www.okiia.gov.al 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
ALGERIA 
Ministère des transports 
Direction de l’Aviation civile et de la météorologie 
119, rue Didouche Mourad, Alger, Algérie 
Tel:  +213 2 74 06 81 (standard), +213 2 74 76 30 (ligne Directeur directe) 
IFALPA MA 
Syndicat Des Pilotes de Ligne Algeriens (SPLA) 
Tel Emergency: +213 661 322215, Tel: +213 21 509 248 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero tolerance. Random testing (before and/or after) only to locals. Test performed by 
airline (blood and urine). Confirmatory test performed by police. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.okiia.gov.al/


ANDORRA 
National Civil Aviation Administration 
Département des Transports et de l’Énergie: Ministère de l’Économie 
Carrer Prat de la Creu, 62-64, Andorra la Vella, Andorra 
Tel: +376 875 700 
NO IFALPA MA 

 

 
ANGOLA 
Gabinete de Prevenção e Investigação de acidentes Aeronáuticos (GPIAA) 
Rua Miguel de Melo No. 96, 6° Andar 
Luanda, Angola 
Tel :  +244 2223-91186 
         +244 9233-30405 / 9125-14939 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
ANGUILLA 
See UNITED KINGDOM 
 

 
ANTIGUA & BARBUDA 
See EASTERN CARIBBEAN STATES 
Leeward Islands Air Line Pilots Association (LIALPA) 
P.O. Box 2313, St. John’s 
Antigua, West Indies 
Tel Emergency: +1 268 764 5868 
Tel : +1 268 764 5861 / +1 268 764 7321 
www.lialpa.org  
NO IFALPA MA 
  

 

 

http://www.lialpa.org/


ARGENTINA 
Junta de Seguridad en el Transporte (JST) 
Florida 361 (7th floor) 
C105AAG, Buenos Aires Argentina 
Tel : +54 11 4381 6333 (24 hrs) / 0800 666 0689 (Local)(24 hrs) 
Whatsapp : +54911 2161 3661 
www.argentina.gob.ar/jst 
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion de Pilotos de Lineas Aereas (APLA) 
Lezica 4031, 1202 Buenos Aires, Argentina 
Tel Emergency : +54 911 6259 0500 
Tel : +54 11 4958 5114/9333 
www.apla.org.ar  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random test possible before flight only to locals. Test performed by 
airline (urine for drug and breath for alcohol). 
Confirmatory test immediately after. No requirement for post accident/incident testing. 
If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Tests performed at airport before signing 
in. Pilots should abstain from consumption of alcohol at least 8 hrs before flight. 
 

 
ARMENIA 
Airworthiness Department 
General Department of Civil Aviation 
Airport “Zvartnots” 
Yerevan-0042, Armenia 
Tel : +374 10 593 005 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
ARUBA 
Aruba Aviation Safety Board 
Sabana Berde 73-B 
Oranjestad, Aruba 
Tel : +297 523 2665 / +297 523 2683  +297 562 4040 (24 hours / 7 days) 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.argentina.gob.ar/jst
http://www.apla.org.ar/


AUSTRALIA 
Australian Transport Safety Bureau (ATSB) 
P.O. Box 967, Civic Square 
Canberra A.C.T. 2608, Australia 
Tel : +61 2 6230-4470 (24/7) 
        +61 2 61221682 (International liaison) 
www.atsb.gov.au 
IFALPA MA 
AusALPA 
Tel : + 61 2 8307 7788 / + 61 (0) 549 747 757 
www.ausalpa.org.au  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance: 0.02. Random testing before and after flightForeign pilots are subject to 
testing. CAA performs testing (employers may also conduct test). Breath for alcohol and 
oral fluid/urine for drugs. Confirmatory tests available. Post-Accident/Incident testing 
required. If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Split sample can be requested 
only for drug. Tests only performed at airport. Pilots should abstain from consumption 
of alcohol at least 8 hrs before flight. 
 

 
AUSTRIA 
Federal Safety Investigation Authority 
Civil Aviation Safety Investigation Authority 
P.O. Box 206, 1000 Vienna, Austria 
Radetzkystrasse 2, 1030 Vienna, Austria 
Tel : +43 1 71162 657700 (H 24) 
www.bmk.gv.at/ministerium/sub/luftfahrt.html 
IFALPA MA 
Austrian Cockpit Association (ACA) 
Einfahrtsstraße Objekt 682, 1300 Schwechat, Austria  
Tel Emergency: +43 (0) 699 199 33339 
Tel : +43 (0) 1 9971787 
www.aca.or.at 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02 
No random testing / No testing on foreign crews. 
Pilots should abstain from consumption of alcohol at least 8 hours before flight. 

http://www.atsb.gov.au/
http://www.ausalpa.org.au/
http://www.bmk.gv.at/ministerium/sub/luftfahrt.html
http://www.aca.or.at/


AZERBAIJAN 
Interstate Aviation Committee 
22/2/1 Bolshaya Ordynka Str. 
119017 Moscow 
Russia 
Tel : +7 495 953-1244 
www.mak.ru  
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
BAHAMAS 
Air Accident Investigation Authority 
Ministry of Transport and Housing 
Domestic Terminal Unit A1.120 
Lynden Pindling International Airport 
P. O. Box CB11702 
Nassau, N.P. Bahamas 
Tel : +1 242 376-1617 / +1 242 376 8334 
Tel : +1 242 3761617 / +1 242 376 8334 
www.baaid.org     
IFALPA MA 
Bahamas Airline Pilots Association (BAPA) 
Blake Road Centre, Unit #3 
P.O.Box CB13138 
Nassau, Bahamas 
Tel Emergency : +1 242 359 1526 
Tel : +1 242 327 0081 
www.bahamasalpa.com 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
No random testing / No testing on foreign crews. 
No provisions for blood testing. 
No requirement for post-accident/incident testing. 
If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. 
Pilots should abstain from consumption of alcohol at least 8 hrs before flight. 
 

 

http://www.mak.ru/
http://www.baaid.org/
http://www.bahamasalpa.com/


BAHRAIN 
Assistant Undersecretary for Civil Aviation 
Ministry of Transportation 
Bahrain International Airport 
P.O. Box 586 
Bahrain 
Tel : +973 32 3000 / 1000 
IFALPA MA 
Gulf Air Pilots Trade Union (GAPTU) 
P.O.Box 50050 
Hidd, Kingdom of Bahrain 
www.gaptu.com 

 

BANGLADESH 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Group of Bangladesh (AAIG-BD) 
Civil Aviation Authority Headquarters (4th Floor) 
Kurmitola, Dhaka-1229 
Bangladesh 
Tel : +880 171 502 7508 / 170 816 7318 (Mobile) 
www.caab.gov.bd 
IFALPA MA 
Bangladesh Airlines Pilot’s Association (BAPA) 
Biman Admin Building (2nd Floor) 
Hazrat Shahjalal Int’l Airport 
Kurmitola, Dhaka-1230 
Tel Emergency : +880 1713377810 / +880 1714041974 
Tel : +880 2 8901244 
 

 

 

 

 
 

http://www.gaptu.com/
http://www.caab.gov.bd/


BARBADOS 
Technical Director — Aviation: Air Traffic Services Building 
Grantley Adams International Airport 
Christ Church, Barbados 
Tel.: (246) 428-09309 
IFALPA MA 
Leeward Islands Air Line Pilots Association (LIALPA) 
P.O. Box 2313, St. John’s, Antigua, West Indies 
Tel Emergency: +1 268 764 5868 
Tel : +1 268 764 5861 / +1 268 764 7321 
www.lialpa.org 
 

 
BELARUS 
Ministry of Transport and Communication: Department of Aviation 
21, Chicherina str., 220029, Minsk, Belarus 
Tel : +375 017 354 2140 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
BELGIUM 
Air Accident Investigation Unit (Belgium) 
Service Public Fédéral Mobilité and Transports 
City Atrium, Rue du Progrès 56, 1210 Brussels, Belgium 
Tel : +32 2 277 4499 
       +32 476 761 865 (24 hours) 
www.mobilit.belgium.be 
IFALPA MA 
Belgian Cockpit Association (BeCA) 
Avenue du Renouveau 
25 Herlevingslaan 
Box 43-44 
1140 Brussels 
Tel Emergency : +32 2 248 03 68 
Tel : +32 2 245 34 50 / +32 479 880243 
www.beca.be 

http://www.lialpa.org/
http://www.mobilit.belgium.be/
http://www.beca.be/


BELIZE 
Belize Aircraft Accident Investigation Unit (AIU) 
Second Floor main terminal building 
Phillip Goldson International Airport 
Ladyville, Belize 
Tel : +501 225 2014 Ext 207 
        +501 632 6238 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
BENIN 
Bureau Enquêtes-Accidents 
Avenue Jean-Paul II Route de l'Aéroport 
Centre de Recherches et Sauvetages 
B.P. 305 
Cotonou 
Benin 
Tel : +229 9798 0113 / 9535 2575 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
BERMUDA 
See United Kingdom 
 
 
BHUTAN 
Air Accident Investigation Unit (AAIU) 
Ministry of Information and Communication 
Royal Government of Bhutan 
Thimphu, Bhutan 
Tel : +975 2 322 567  
www.moic.gov.bt 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 

http://www.moic.gov.bt/


BOLIVIA 
Unidad de Investigación y Prevención de Accidentes e incidentes  
de Aviación Civil de Bolivia (Unidad AIG) 
Av. Plácido Molina S/N Hangar 76 
Santa Cruz, Bolivia 
Tel : +591 3 354 6060 / 63 / 64 / 65 
        +591 7210 7725 / 7153 0052 (Mobile - 24 hrs) 
www.dgac.gob.bo 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
BOSNIA AND HERZEGOVINA 
Ministry of Communications and Transport 
Trg BiH 1 
71000 Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina 
Tel : +387 33 284 750 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
BOTSWANA 
Director of Accident Investigation 
Directorate of Accident Investigation (DAI) 
Ministry of Transport and Communication 
Office No. 314, Third Floor 
Westgate Mall, Private Bag 00414 
Gaborone, Botswana 
Tel :  +267 392 8249 / 362 5639 
         +267 73 011 582 / 73 257 658 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

http://www.dgac.gob.bo/


BRAZIL 
Centro de Investigação e Prevenção de Acidentes Aeronáuticos — CENIPA 
SHIS — QI 05 — Área Especial 12 
LAGO SUL 
Brasilia — DF — CEP 71615-600, Brasil 
Tel : +55 61 3364 8800 (only Portuguese) 
         +55 61 99994 9554 (24 hours – Spanish and English) 
www.cenipa.aer.mil.br   
IFALPA MA 
Sindicato Nacional dos Aeronautas (SNA) 
Avenida Washington Luis 6817 
Sala 101 Congonhas 
04627-005, Sao Paulo-SP 
Tel Emergency : +55 11 99958 3153 
Tel : +55 11 5531 0318 
www.aeronautas.org.br 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance 
Random Testing before flight performed by the operator (breath urine or keratin). No 
testing on foreign crews. Confirmatory test depending on airline. No requirement for 
post-accident/incident but could be requested. 
If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Depending on the airline, alcohol 
consumption should be avoided from 8 to 24 hrs before flight. 
 
 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 
See United Kingdom 
 
 
BRUNEI DARUSSALAM 
Air Accident Investigation Authority 
Ministry of Transport and Infocommunications 
Jalan Menteri Besar 
Bandar Seri Begawan BB3910 
Brunei Darussalam 
Tel : +673 238-3838 

NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.cenipa.aer.mil.br/
http://www.aeronautas.org.br/


BULGARIA 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Unit 
9, Dyakon Ignattii Street 
1000 Sofia, Bulgaria 
Tel : +359 2 940 9864 
        +359 088 960 1266 (mobile) 
www.mtitc.government.bg  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
BURKINA FASO 
Direction de l’Aviation Civile 
B.P. 1158 
Ouagadougou 01, Burkina Faso  
Tel : +226 30 64 88 / +226 31 63 32 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
BURUNDI 
Chef du Bureau AIG 
Aéroport International du Bujumbura 
Bujumbura, Burundi  
Tel : +257 78 571251 / +257 7957 1251 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CABO VERDE 
Institute for the Prevention and Investigation of Aeronautical  
and Maritime Accidents - IPIAAM 
Rua Angola (Antiga casa do Ex-Presidente da República) 
Cidade do Mindelo, Ilha de São Vicente 
Cabo Verde 
Tel : +238 230 09 92 (General) 
        +238 9951774 / 9931711 (24 hours) 
www.ipiaam.cv 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.mtitc.government.bg/
http://www.ipiaam.cv/


 
CAMBODIA 
State Secretariat of Civil Aviation 
62 Preach Norodom Blvd. 
Phnom Penh, Cambodia 
Tel : +855 12 810 330 / 878 192 / 456 443 (24 hours) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
CAMEROON 
Civil Aviation Department 
Ministry of Transport 
Yaoundé, Cameroon 
Tel : +237 222 222 673 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CANADA 
Transportation Safety Board of Canada 
200 Promenade du Portage, Place du Centre, 4th Floor 
Gatineau, Quebec K1A 1K8, Canada 
Tel : +1 800 387 3557 (toll-free in Canada) 
        +1 819 994 3741 (from outside Canada) 
www.tsb.gc.ca 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots Association, International (ALPA Canada) 
360 Albert Street, Suite 1715 
Ottawa, Ontario, Canada, K1R7X7 
Tel Emergency : +1 202 797 4180, +1 703 892 4180 (24hrs), Tel : +1 877 373 3131 
www.alpa.org  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.08 (although there is no prescribed limit per se). No random testing / No 
testing on foreign crews. If performed, test is run by private organizations (breath for 
alcohol, urine for drugs). Confirmation tests usually uses blood. No requirement for 
post-accident/incident alcohol/drug testing. TSB may require testing. If pilot refuses to 
test, it is considered positive. Pilots should abstain from consuming alcohol 8 hs before 
flight. 

http://www.tsb.gc.ca/
http://www.alpa.org/


CAYMAN ISLANDS 
See United Kingdom for authority information 
IFALPA MA 
Cayman Airways Pilots’ Association (CAPA) 
P.O. Box 11955 
Grand Cayman KY1-1010 
Cayman Islands 
Tel : +1 345 916 1192 
Tel : +1 345 916 8152 
 
CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC 
Direction Générale de l’Aviation Civile et de la Météorologie 
B.P. 941 et 224, Bangui, République Centrafricaine 
Tel : +236 61 53 16 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
CHAD 
Direction de l’Aviation Civile 
B.P. 96 
N’Djaména, Tchad 
Tel : +235 516 231 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
CHILE 
Departamento Prevención de Accidentes 
Elena Blanco #1050 
Providencia, Santiago, Chile 
Tel : +56 2 2439 2376 / +56 2 2436 8142 
        +56 9 9158 1908 / +56 9 9158 1824 
www.dgac.gob.cl  
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion de Pilotos de Chile (ASPCH) 
Padre Mariano 103 Oficina 405 
Providencia, Santiago, Chile 
Tel : +569 92371806 
Tel : +56 2 236 0419 /+56 2 2735948 
www.aspch.org  

http://www.dgac.gob.cl/
http://www.aspch.org/


CHINA 
Office of Aviation Safety: Civil Aviation Administration of China 
155 Dongsi Street West, Beijing 100710, China 
Tel.: +86 10 6409 1909 (business hours) / +86 13910412413 (24 hours / 7 days)  
IFALPA MA 
China Airline Pilots’ Association (ChALPA) 
157 Dong Si Street West, Office 905 
Beijing 100010, China 
Tel Emergency : +86 13906018084 
Tel : +86 10 8400 1503 
www.chalpa.org  
 
CHINA, HONG KONG, SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION 
Air Accident Investigation Authority 
Level G, Facility Building 
1 Tung Fai Road, Hong Kong International Airport 
Lantau, Hong Kong 
  Tel.: +852 9518 5800 (24 hours) 
www.thb.gov.hk/aaia/eng/index.htm 
IFALPA MA 
Hong Kong Air Line Pilots’ Association (HKALPA) 
5/F Daily House 
35 - 37 Haiphong Road 
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong 
 
Tel Emergency : +852  2736 0491 (24hrs) 
Tel : +852 2736 0362 
www.hkalpa.org 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. Random testing on some local crews. No random testing on foreign 
crews. 
No post-accident/incident testing. 
Pilots should abstain from drinking 8 hrs before flight. 
 
 
 

http://www.chalpa.org/
http://www.thb.gov.hk/aaia/eng/index.htm
http://www.hkalpa.org/


CHINA, MACAU, SPECIAL ADMINISTRATIVE REGION  
Civil Aviation Authority 
Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpção, 336-342 
Centro Comercial Cheng Feng, 18˚ andar 
Macau, China 
Tel : +853 2851 1213 / +853 6232 2999 (24 hours) 
www.aacm.gov.mo  
 
 
COLOMBIA 
Grupo Investigación de Accidentes 
Unidad Administrativa Especial de Aeronáutica Civil 
Avenida Eldorado No. 103 - 15 
Edificio NEAA, 5° Piso 
Bogotá, D.C. 110911 
Colombia 
Tel : +57 317 517 1162 (mobile 24 hrs) / +57 317 517 1027 (mobile) 
        +571 296 3169 / 3186  
www.aerocivil.gov.co 
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion Colombiana de Pilotos Aviadores Civiles (ACDAC) 
Transversal 19A No 95-61 
Barrio Chico 
Bogota 
D.C. Colombia 
Tel Emergency : +57 3102682327 
Tel : +57 1 621 6380 / 602 1065 
www.acdac.org.co 
 
 
COMOROS 
Direction Générale de l’Aviation Civile et de la Météorologie 
B.P. 72, Moroni, Comores 
Tel : +269 744 245 / 730 447 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.aacm.gov.mo/
http://www.aerocivil.gov.co/
http://www.acdac.org.co/


CONGO 
Bureau des Enquêtes et des Accidents d’aviation civile - Aéroport International Maya 
B.P. 2148, Brazzaville, Congo 
Tel : +242 0695-26063 / +242 0556 99363 / +242 0643 63657  
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CONGO, DEMOCRATIC REGPULIC OF 
Ministry of the Transportation and Ways of Communication - Permanent office of 
investigations of aviation Accidents/Incidents 
41, avenue Comité Urbain 
Immeuble ZECODIAM 1er Niveau 
Kinshasa/Gombe, Democratic Republic of Congo 
Tel : +243 81 725-2774 / +243 81 504 6326 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
COOK ISLANDS 
Department of Civil Aviation  
P.O. Box 61, Rarotonga, Cook Islands 
Tel +682 22 810 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
COSTA RICA 
Jefe de la Autoridad de Investigación de Accidentes e Incidentes Aéreos del Consejo  
Técnico de Aviación Civil (AIA CETAC) 
Ubicada en el Aeropuerto Internacional Tobías Bolaños Palma (MRPV)   
Pavas, San José, Costa Rica 
Tel : +506 2290 0664 / +506 8705 6962 (mobile, 24 horas) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 

 



CÔTE D’IVOIRE 
Bureau Enquêtes et Analyses des Accidents et Incidents d'Aviation   
Route de l'Aéroport FHB d'Abidjan 
07 B.P. 148, Abidjan 07, Côte d’Ivoire 
Tel : +225 2158 0934 / +225 0707 7346 / 4967 0943 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CROATIA 
Air, Maritime and Railway Traffic Accident Investigation Agency 
Lonjička 2, HR-10000 Zagreb, Croatia 
Tel : +385 1 888 6830 / +385 99 807 1301 (24 hours) 
www.ain.hr  
IFALPA MA 
Croatian Air Line Pilots’ Association (CROALPA) 
HSPP (Hrvatski Sindikat Prometnih Pilota) 
PP4 Zracna Luka Zagreb 
10150 Zagreb, Croatia 
Tel Emergency : +385 (91) 44 00382 / +385 (91) 44 00383 
Tel : +385 98274458 
www.hspp.hr 
 
 
CUBA 
Dirección de Operaciones y Seguridad Operacional 
Instituto de Aeronáutica Civil de Cuba 
Calle 23 No. 64 Vedado, Havana ,Cuba 10600 
Tel :+53 7834 6597 
       +53 7838 1025 (24 hrs- Spanish only) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 

 

 

http://www.ain.hr/
http://www.hspp.hr/


CURAÇAO 
Curaçao Civil Aviation Authority 
Siegried Fransisco Building Z/N 
Curaçao 
Tel : +599 9 839 3319 
        +599 9 839 3518 (24 hours) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CYPRUS 
Cyprus Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation Board (AAIIB) 
Air Traffic Control Tower 
1st floor, 214 Office 
Larnaca International Airport, Cyprus 
Tel.: +357 24 643 086 / 24 802 913 
        +357 9963 3500 / 9965 4112 (24 hours) 
www.aaiib.gov.cy 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
CZECH REPUBLIC 
Air Accidents Investigation Institute 
Beranových 130 
199 01 Prague 99, Czech Republic   
Tel : +420 266 199 231 / +420 724 300 800 (24 hours) 
www.uzpln.cz   
IFALPA MA 
Czech Air Line Pilots’ Association (CZALPA CSA) 
Letiste Ruzyne 
Jana Kaspara 1, Prague 6 
Tel : +420 220 611 522 /+420 724672201             
www.czalpa.cz 
 
 

 

http://www.aaiib.gov.cy/
http://www.uzpln.cz/
http://www.czalpa.cz/


DENMARK 
Accident Investigation Board 
Jaettevej 50A, 1st floor 
DK-4100 Ringsted, Denmark 
Tel : +45 33 14 70 80 (24 hours) 
www.aib.dk   
IFALPA MA 
Danish Air Line Pilots Association (DALPA) 
CO. Dansk Pilotforening  
Kastruplundgade 13  
DK 2770  Kastrup , Denmark 
Tel Emergency : +45 29 90 60 73 
Tel : +45 32 50 53 22/+45 61 88 77 22 
www.dalpa.dk 
 
 
DJIBOUTI 
Bureau d'Enquêtes et d'Analyses - BEA 
BP: 2501 Djibouti, Djibouti 
Tel : +253 21 349 777 
Fax : +253 2135 5975 
Numéro Vert 1522 – Portable GSM : (253) 77 44 00 00 (Appel d'urgence) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
DOMINICA 
See Eastern Caribbean States 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.aib.dk/
http://www.dalpa.dk/


DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
Comisión Investigadora de Accidentes de Aviación - Junta de Aviación Civil 
Calle José Joaquín Pérez no. 104, Gazcue 
Santo Domingo 
República Dominicana   
Tel : +1 809 689 4167 
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion Nacional de Pilotos de la Republica Dominicana (ANP) 
Aeropuerto Internacional La Isabela, Dr Joaquin Balaguer 
Santo Domingo Norte 
Republica Dominicana 
Tel : +1 809 826 4005 
 

 
EASTERN CARIBBEAN STATES 
Eastern Caribbean Civil Aviation Authority 
P.O. Box 1130, St. John’s 
Antigua and Barbuda 
Tel : +268 462 0000 (0830 - 1630 hrs) 
        +268 764 3321 (24 hrs) 
www.eccaa.aero 
IFALPA MA 
See Leeward Islands 
 

 
ECUADOR 
Junta Investigadora de Accidentes 
Dirección General de Aviación Civil 
Buenos Aires Oe1-53 y Av. 10 de Agosto 
Edificio DAC, piso 13, Quito, Ecuador 
Tel.: +593 2 294 7428 (direct) / +593 2 294 7400 ext. 5340, 5341, 5342 
        +593 934 01445 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.eccaa.aero/


EGYPT 
Egyptian Aircraft Accident Investigation Directorate 
Ministry of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 52, Cairo Airport Road 
Heliopolis, Post Number 11776 
Cairo, Egypt 
Tel : +20 2 2268 8371 / +20 100 538 5769 (24 hrs)        
        +20 100 538 5869 (24 hrs) / +20 109 784 2040 (24 hrs) 
www.civilaviation.gov.eg 
IFALPA MA 
Egyptian Air Line Pilots’ Association (EGALPA) 
P.O.Box 62 
Cairo International Airport 
11776 Cairo, Egypt 
Tel Emergency : +20 111 988 6662 / +20 102 333 4553 
Tel : +20 222676383 
 
 
EL SALVADOR 
Autoridad de Aviación Civil 
Boulevard del Ejercito Nacional KM 9 1/2 
Carretera Panamericana Ilopango 
San Salvador 
El Salvador 
Tel : +503 2565 4518 / +503 2565 4474 / +503 7740 4256 (24 hours) 
        +503 7862 9264 / +503 7683 1903 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
EQUATORIAL GUINEA 
Ministerio de Aviación Civil 
Célula de Investigación de Accidentes e Incidentes 
Autovía Aeropuerto Internacional de Malabo (Malabo II) 
Malabo Bioko Norte 
República de Guinea Ecuatorial 
Tel : +240 9 3231 / +240 9 2062 +240 2226 96105 / 2222 72130 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.civilaviation.gov.eg/


ERITREA 
Director General 
Civil Aviation Authority 
Sematat Avenue Street No. 172 
P.O. Box 252 
Asmara, Eritrea 
Tel : +291 1 124335 (Director General) / +291 1 127250 (Air Navigation Division) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
ESTONIA 
Estonian Safety Investigation Bureau 
11 Harju Street 
Tallinn 15072, Estonia 
Tel : +372 625 6314 / +372 625-6444 (24 hours) 
www.ojk.ee  
IFALPA MA 
Estonian ALPA 
Lennujaama tee 13, 
Tallinn 11101, Estonia 
Tel : +372 53303385 (mobile) 
www.aircrew.ee 
 
 
ETHOPIA 
Ethiopian Aircraft Accident Investigation Bureau 
P.O. Box 978, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia   
Tel : +251 116650273 / +251)  912230280 / 946618856 / 911832457 (24 hrs) 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots’ Association of Ethiopia 
Bole Subcity, Kebele-03/05 
P.O. Box 767, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia 
Tel Emergency : +251 911 23169 
Tel : +251 11621630 / 116621632 / 116621567 
 
 

http://www.ojk.ee/
http://www.aircrew.ee/


FIJI 
Civil Aviation Authority of Fiji 
Private Mail Bag 
Nap 0354 
Nadi Airport, Fiji 
Tel : +679 672 1555 / +679 999 5201 (after hours) 
www.caafi.org.fj 
IFALPA MA 
Fiji Airline Pilots’ Association 
P.O. Box 11940 
Nadi Airport, Fiji 
Tel Emergency : +679 6725605 - +679 9992965 / Mobile: 9122266 & 9916633 
Tel : +679 672 5605 
 
 
FINLAND 
Safety Investigation Authority, Finland 
Ratapihantie 9 
FI-00520 Helsinki, Finland   
Tel : +358 2951 60001 / +358 50 511 2112 (24 hours) 
www.turvallisuustutkinta.fi 
IFALPA MA 
Finnish Pilots’ Association (FPA) 
Tikkurilantori 1 LT 4 01300 Vantaa 
Tel Emergency : +358 40 560 8189 /+358 40 5555 348 / +358 40 74 30 802 
Tel : +358 9 753 7220 
www.fpapilots.fi 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. No random testing / No testing on foreign crews. Breathalyzer alcohol 
test performed by police/border control officers.  
CAA SAFA also allowed. Test after accident/incident. Police can force pilot for sample. 
Alcohol consumption should be avoided 8 hs before flight, some airlines 12 hs. 
 

 

 

http://www.caafi.org.fj/
http://www.turvallisuustutkinta.fi/
http://www.fpapilots.fi/


FRANCE 
Bureau d’Enquêtes et d’Analyses pour la sécurité de l’aviation civile 
10 rue de Paris 
Aéroport du Bourget 
93352 Le Bourget Cedex, France 
Tel : +33 1 49 92 72 00 (secretariat) / +33 1 48 35 86 54 / 
        +33 1 49 92 72 72 (Emergency 24 hours) 
www.bea.aero 
IFALPA MA 
Syndicat Nacional des Pilotes de Ligne (SNPL) 
Roissypole Le Dome 
5, rue de la Haye 
BP 19955 Tremblay  
95733 Roissy Charles de Gaulle Cedex, France 
Tel Emergency : +33 1 4989 24 00 / +33 9 85 60 77 00 
Tel : +33 1 4989 2400 
www.snpl.com 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
0.2 tolerance. No random testing on local or foreign pilots. Can only be done by police 
or transport police. Confirmatory testing possible (blood) 
After incident/accident can be tested, both local and foreign crew. If pilot refuses to test, 
imprisonment (1 year) and fine (3750 euros). Alcohol consumption should be avoided 8 
hrs before flight. 
 

 
GABON 
Bureau d'Enquêtes Incidents et Accidents d'Aviation (BEIAA) 
Immeuble Interministériel 
B.P. 2087 
Libreville 
Gabon 
Tel : +241 01 772-032 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 

http://www.bea.aero/
http://www.snpl.com/


GAMBIA 
Gambia Civil Aviation Authority 
Banjul International Airport 
Yundum, P.O. Box 285 
Banjul, Gambia 
Tel : +220 472831 / 82167 / 71 
NO IFALPA MA 

 

GEORGIA 
Civil Aviation and Maritime Transport 
Accident / Incident Investigation Bureau (TAIIB) 
10 A Chovelidze Str., 0108, Tbilisi, Georgia 
Tel : +995 595 00 1847 (mobile) 
www.economy.gov.ge 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
GERMANY 
Federal Bureau of Aircraft Accidents Investigation 
Hermann-Blenk-Str. 16 
38108 Braunschweig, Germany 
Tel : +49 531 3548 0 
www.bfu-web.de  
IFALPA MA 
Vereinigung Cockpit (VC) 
Main Airport Centre 
Unterschweinstiege 10, 6.OG 
D-60549 Frankfurt/Main 
Tel Emergency : +49 180 2770082 / +49 69 34 87 29 32 
Tel : +49 69 695976 0 / +49 69695976120 
www.vcockpit.de 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random tests possible before flight to local and foreign crews. 
Operators perform test to locals, and authority performs to foreign crews. Confirmatory 
test possible. No provisions for blood testing. If pilot refuses, it is considered positive. 
Alcohol consumption should be avoided 8 hrs before flight.  
Some companies suggest 12 hrs. 

http://www.economy.gov.ge/
http://www.bfu-web.de/
http://www.vcockpit.de/


GHANA 
Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation and Prevention Bureau 
P.O. Box KA,16412, 
Kotoka International Airport, Accra, Ghana. 
Tel: +233 50 239 6070 / +233 57 200 0888 
www.aibghana.gov.gh 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
GIBRALTAR 
See United Kingdom 
 

 
GREECE 
Air Accident Investigation and Aviation Safety Board (AAIASB) 
Vitinis 14-18 str, 4th Floor 
Nea Philadelphia 143 42, Athens, Greece 
Tel : +30 210 960 8080 
        +30 6981 000578 (24 hour) 
www.aaiasb.gr 
IFALPA MA 
Hellenic Air Line Pilots Association 
217 Sygrou Avenue 
17121 Athens, Greece 
Tel Emergency : +30 6948985337 / +30 6944944955 
Tel : +30 210 9344330 
 
GRENADA 
See Eastern Caribbean States 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.aibghana.gov.gh/
http://www.aaiasb.gr/


GUATEMALA 
Dirección General de Aeronáutica Civil 
9ºa. Avenida 14-75, Zona 13 
Guatemala, Centro América 
Tel : +502 2 321-5234 / 5238 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
GUERNSEY 
See United Kingdom 
 

 
GUINEA 
Direction Nationale de l’Aviation Civile 
Route Transversale No. 2 
Aéroport International Conakry - Gbèssia 
B.P. 95, Conakry, République de Guinée 
Tel : +224 6268-4452 / 6420-1065 / 6370-1288 
        +224 6434-5643 / 6232-0035 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
GUINEA-BISSAU 
Direction Générale de l’Aviation Civile 
C.P. 77, Bissau, Guinée-Bissau 
Tel : +245 21 30 03 / 21 39 61 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
GUYANA 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Unit (AAIU) 
Civil Aviation Authority 
73 High Street, Kingston, Georgetown, Guyana 
Tel : +592 225 6822 / 231-0563 
        +592 608 4222 (24 hours) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 



HAITI 
Office National de l’Aviation civile 
Aéroport International de Port-au-Prince 
B.P. 1346, Port-au-Prince, Haiti 
Tel : +509 46 052 
Fax: (509) 46 0998 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
HONDURAS 
Comisión de  Investigación de Accidentes e Incidentes Aéreos 
Agencia Hondureña de Aeronáutica Civil 
Apartado Postal 30145 
Tegucigalpa, M.D.C., Honduras 
Tel : +504 2233 1115 Ext 2033 (AHAC) 
www.ahac.gob.hn   
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
HUNGARY 
Transportation Safety Bureau (TSB) 
P. O. B. 88 
H-1441 Budapest, Hungary 
Tel : +36 1 294 5529 
       +36 30 931 0832 (mobile) 
www.kbsz.hu 
IFALPA MA 
Hungarian Air Line Pilots’ Association (HunALPA) 
1055 Budapest, Falk Miksa utca 32. I. em. 8/a, Hungary 
Tel Emergency : +3620 392 6878 
Tel : +36 1 2973600 
www.hunalpa.hu  
 
 

 

http://www.ahac.gob.hn/
http://www.kbsz.hu/
http://www.hunalpa.hu/


ICELAND 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Board 
Hus FBSR, Flugvallarvegi, 101 Reykjavik, Iceland 
Tel : +354 511 1666 (0800 – 1600 hrs) 
        +354 660 0336 (24 hour) 
www.rnf.is  
IFALPA MA 
Icelandic Air Line Pilots Association (FIA) 
Hlíðasmára 8, 201 Kópavogur, Iceland 
Tel Emergency : +354 599 1198 
Tel : +354 6939690 / +354 5578841 (General Manager) 
www.fia.is  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. No random testing. Done by police, if performed. 
No requirement for post-accident/incident, but police may still perform it. Avoid 
drinking 8 hrs before flight. 
 

 
INDIA 
Air Accident Investigation Bureau 
Rajiv Gandhi Bhawan 
Safdarjung Airport 
New Delhi-3, India 
Tel : +91 11 2461-0843 / 2461-0848 (24 hrs) / +91 98 7193-5864 (mobile) 
        +91 99 1136-0971 (mobile) 
IFALPA MA 
Airline Pilots’ Association (ALPA India) 
c/o IPG 1st Floor, Old Transport Building, 
Near Operations Department, 
Old Airport, Kalina,  
Santacruz-East, India 
Tel Emergency : +91 80 6999 0237 
Tel : +91 (0) 22 26157428 
 

 

http://www.rnf.is/
http://www.fia.is/


INDONESIA 
National Transportation Safety Committee 
 Ministry of Transportation Building, 3rd Floor 
 Jl. Medan Merdeka Timur No. 5 
 Jakarta 10110, Indonesia 
 Tel.: +62 21 351 7606 
         +62 21 384 7601 
         +62 812 1265-5155 (24 hours) 
www.dephub.go.id/knkt 
IFALPA MA 
Ikatan Pilot Indonesia (IPI) 
Gedung Garuda Sentra Operasi 
Soekarno-Hatta Intl. Airport 
Jakarta 19110   PO Box 1224 JKT 19130, Indonesia 
Tel : +62 21 559 0447 / +62 21 550 1717 x 2102 
 
 
IRAN, (ISLAMIC REPULBIC OF) 
Ministry of Roads and Urban Development 
Civil Aviation Organization 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Board 
Mehrabad International Airport 
P.O. Box 13445-1798 
Tehran, Iran  
Tel : +98 21 6607 3526 / 6602 5045 
www.cao.ir  
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
IRAQ 
Directorate of Flight Safety 
General Establishment of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 23006 
Baghdad International Airport 
Baghdad, Iraq 
Tel : +964 1 8863999 (ext. 28278) 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.dephub.go.id/knkt
http://www.cao.ir/


IRELAND 
Air Accident Investigation Unit (AAIU) 
Department of Transport, Tourism and Sport 
Leeson Lane 
Dublin 2, D02TR60 
Ireland 
Tel : +353 1 604-1293 (24 hours) 
www.aaiu.ie 
IFALPA MA 
Irish Air Line Pilots’ Association (IALPA) 
Unit 2.4, Woodford Business Park, 
Santry, Dublin 17, Dl 7 E524 
Tel Emergency : +353 1844-5823 / +353 85 212 8967 
Tel : +353 1 886 3248 / 1 844 5272 
www.ialpa.net 
 
 
ISLE OF MAN (DT) 
See United Kingdom 
 

 
ISRAEL 
Ministry of Transport, Chief Investigator 
P.O. Box 120, Ben Gurion International Airport 70100, Israel 
Tel : +972 3 975 1380 
        +972 50 621 2757 (24 hours mobile) 
IFALPA MA 
Israel Air Line Pilots’ Association (IsrALPA) 
6 Habaal Shem-tov St, PO Box 15 
Lod, 7128906 
Tel Emergency : +972 54 626 0095/ +972 54 455 4678 
Tel : +972 8 9150694 
www.isralpa.org.il 
 

http://www.aaiu.ie/
http://www.ialpa.net/
http://www.isralpa.org.il/


ITALY 
Agenzia Nazionale per la Sicurezza del Volo (ANSV) 
Via Attilio Benigni, 53 
00156 Rome, Italy 
Tel :  +39 06 82078200 
        +39 06 82078207 (Emergency 24 hours) 
www.ansv.it  
IFALPA MA 
Associazione Nazionale Professionale Aviazione Civile (ANPAC) 
Via A. Mantegna, 8 
00054 Fiumicino, Rome, Italy 
Tel Emergency : +39 347 782 8228 / +39 392 681 6695 / +44 1202 653 110 
Tel : +39 066519151 
www.anpac.it 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random testing to local and foreign crews at end of duty performed by 
the operator. If pilot refuses, suspension of flight activities.  
Avoid drinking 8 hrs before flight. 

 

 
JAMAICA 
Civil Aviation Authority 
4 Winchester Road 
Kingston 5, Jamaica 
Tel : +876 960 3965 / +876 920 2280 
IFALPA MA 
Jamaica Air Line Pilots’ Association 
2, Seymour Avenue 
Seymour Park, Unit # 4 
Kingston 10, Jamaica 
Tel Emergency : + 1 876 381 1625 
Tel : +1 876 978 5854 / +1 876 978 4083 
www.jalpa.org  
 

 

http://www.ansv.it/
http://www.anpac.it/
http://www.jalpa.org/


JAPAN 
Japan Transport Safety Board 
Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism 
15th Floor, YOTSUYA TOWER 
1-6-1 Yotsuya, Shinjuku-ku, 
Tokyo 160-0004 
Japan 
Tel : +81 3 5367 5031 (office hours) 
       +81 90 1049 8728 / 8729 (out of office hours/mobile) 
www.mlit.go.jp/jtsb/english.html  
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots’ Association of Japan (ALPA Japan) 
Phoenix Bldg. 
5-11-4 Haneda 
Ota-ku, Tokyo 144-0043 
Tel Emergency : +81 (0)3 5735 5061 
Tel : +81 3 5705 2770 
www.alpajapan.org  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.01. No random testing. If performed, by operator. No confirmatory test. No 
requirement post-accident/incident. Abstain from alcohol consumption 12 hrs before 
flight. 
 

 
JERSEY 
See United Kingdom 
 

 
JORDAN 
Jordan Civil Aviation Regulatory Commission 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Directorate (AAID) 
P.O. Box 7547, Amman 11110, Jordan 
Tel : +962 6 489 3576 / +962 6 489 2282 / +962 6 479 9120 
www.carc.gov.jo 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.mlit.go.jp/jtsb/english.html
http://www.alpajapan.org/
http://www.carc.gov.jo/


KAZAKHSTAN 
Ministry of Transport and Communications 
Accident and Incident Investigation Department 
32/1, Kabanbai Batyr Avenue 
010000 Astana, Kazakhstan 
Tel : +7 7172 243 692 / 242 802 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
KENYA 
The Chief Investigator of Air Accidents, Kenya 
Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure 
P.O. Box 52692-00100 
Nairobi, Kenya 
Tel : +254 20 272 9200 
www.transport.go.ke 
IFALPA MA 
Kenya Air Line Pilots’ Association (KALPA) 
Rubani House, Off Airport North Road 
Embakasi 
P.O. BOX 57509-00200 
Nairobi, Kenya 
Tel Emergency : +254 722 778844 
Tel : +254 208 20410 
www.kalpa.org 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.04. Random testing before and after flight only to locals performed by the 
operator. There is confirmatory testing (blood test)  
Post-accident/incident testing to both local and foreign crews. 
Abstain from alcohol consumption 8 hrs before flight. 
 

 

 

 

http://www.transport.go.ke/
http://www.kalpa.org/


KIRIBATI 
The Director of Civil Aviation 
Ministry of Information, Communications and Transport 
P.O. Box 277, Bikenibeu, Tarawa, Kiribati 
Tel : +686 28092 / 26003 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

 
KOREA, (SOUTH) 
Aviation & Railway Accident Investigation Board 
Ministry of Land, Infrastructure and Transport 
Room #604, Building A, Sejong Business Center 
#232 Gareum-ro 
Sejong Special Self-governing City 30121 
Republic of Korea   
Tel : +82 44 201 5428 / +82 10 5431 4001 (mobile) 
www.araib.go.kr 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots’ Association of Korea (ALPA-K) 
2F Golfport 
294 Banghwa-daero #1101 
Gangseo-gu, Seoul, 07599 
South Korea 157-240 
Tel Emergency : +82 10 8759 2043 / +82 10 2822 8361 / +82 10 9011 1620 
Tel : +82 2 2662 2297 
www.alpak.or.kr  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. Random testing before and after flight to local and foreign crews 
performed by the operator or CAA via breathalyser or urine. 
Confirmatory test (blood). Post-accident/incident testing.  If pilot refuses to test, it is 
considered positive 
Abstain from drinking alcohol at least 23 hours before flight. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.araib.go.kr/
http://www.alpak.or.kr/


KUWAIT 
Directorate General of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 17 SAFAT 
Kuwait 13001, Kuwait 
Tel : +965 161 ext. 1500 (emergency 24 hours)  
        +965 2 476 5815 / +965 2 476 2755 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
KYRGYZSTAN 
Interstate Aviation Committee 
22/2/1 Bolshaya Ordynka Str. 
119017 Moscow, Russia 
Tel : +7 495 953-1244 
www.mak.ru  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
LAO PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC 
Department of Civil Aviation 
Wattay International Airport 
P.O. Box 119 
Vientiane Capital, Laos 
Tel : +856 21 512161 / 512163 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
LATVIA 
Transport Accident and Incident Investigation Bureau 
Brivibas Street 58, Room 209 
LV-1011 Riga, Latvia 
Tel.: +371 29337440 
        +371 67288172 (24 hrs) 
IFALPA MA 
Pilots Trade Union of Latvia 
Tel Emergency : +371 29539575 
Tel : +371 26430222 

http://www.mak.ru/


LEBANON 
Directorate General of Civil Aviation 
Rafic Hariri International Airport - Beirut 
Khalde, Lebanon 
Tel : +961 1 628195 / 6 / 7 
       +961 3 032443 (mobile) 
IFALPA MA 
Lebanese Pilots’ Association 
P.O. Box 11-206 
Beirut, Lebanon 
Tel Emergency : +961 3 669669 
Tel : +961 1 623 611 
 
 
LESOTHO 
Directorate Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 629, Maseru 100, Lesotho 
Tel : +266 312499 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
LIBERIA 
Directorate of Civil Aviation 
Ministry of Transport 
P.O. Box 9041-1000, Monrovia 10, Liberia 
Tel : +231 22 66 91 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
LIBYA 
Civil Aviation Authority 
Imam Malek St. Althahra 
Aviation Accident Investigation Bureau 
Tripoli, Libya 
Tel : +218 21 333-4797 
NO IFALPA MA 
 



LITHUANIA 
Ministry of Justice of the Republic of Lithuania 
Transport Accident and Incident Investigation Division 
Gedimino Ave. 30, LT-01104 Vilnius, Lithuania 
Tel : +370 5 266 2981 
www.tm.lt 
IFALPA MA 
Lithuanian Airline Pilots' Association 
Lietuvos Avialinijos 
A. Gustaicio 4, LT- 2038 Vilnius 
Lithuania 
 
 
LUXEMBOURG 
Ministère du Développement Durable et des Infrastructures 
Administration des Enquêtes Techniques 
Aviation Civile, Maritime, Fluvial, Chemin de Fer 
B.P. 1388, L-1013 Luxembourg  
Tel.: (352) 247-84404 
IFALPA MA 
Association Luxembourgeoise des Pilotes de Ligne (ALPL) 
1A, Route de Treves 
L-2632 Findel, Luxembourg 
Tel Emergency : +352 621 831 095 
Tel : +35 2 435 353 
www.alpl.lu 
 
 
MADAGASCAR 
Bureau des Enquêtes des Accidents et Incidents de l'Aviation Civile (BEAC) 
Ministère des Transports 
Rue Jules Ranaivo 
Anosy, Antananarivo 
Madagascar 
Tel : +261 20 22 24604 / +261 20 22 44757 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.tm.lt/
http://www.alpl.lu/


MALAWI 
Director of Civil Aviation 
Private Bag 322, Capital City 
Lilongwe 3, Malawi   
Tel : +265 780 577 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
MALAYSIA 
Chief Inspector, Air Accident Investigation Bureau (AAIB), Ministry of Transport 
Level 8, No. 26 
Jalan Tun Hussein, Precinct 4 
Federal Government Administration Centre 
62100 WP Putrajaya, MALAYSIA  
Tel +60 3 8892 1072 
IFALPA MA 
Malaysia Airlines Pilots’ Association (MAPA) 
No: 11 - 3 (2nd Floor) 
Jalan USJ21/8 
47630 UEP Subang Jaya 
Selangor 
Tel Emergency : +60  12 3838734 
Tel : +60 38024 3040 /8024 3041 
www.mapa.org.my 
 
 
MALDIVES 
Accident Investigation Coordinating Committee 
Maldives Civil Aviation Authority 
11th Floor Velaanaage 
Ameer Ahmed Magu 
Malé 20096 
Republic of Maldives   
Tel : +960 777 4838 / +960 981 7838 / 302 7263 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.mapa.org.my/


MALI 
Direction Nationale de l’Aéronautique Civile 
Ministère des Travaux Publics et des Transports 
B.P. 227, Bamako, Mali   
Tel +223 22 55 24 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
MALTA 
Bureau of Air Accident Investigation 
c/o Ministry for Tourism 
233 Republic Street 
Valletta VLT1116, Malta 
Tel : +356 2291 5077 / +356 2291 5088 / +356 9938 2725 (24 hours) 
www.baai.gov.mt 
IFALPA MA 
Airline Pilots Association-Malta 
P.O. Box 6, Malta International Airport 
Luqa LQA 4000, Malta 
Tel Emergency : +356 9944 7227 / +356 7941 5203 
Tel : + 356 9947 5667 
www.alpamalta.org 
 
 
MARSHALL ISLANDS 
Directorate of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 1114, Majuro 96960, Marshall Islands   
Tel : +692 247 3889 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.baai.gov.mt/
http://www.alpamalta.org/


MAURITANIA 
Ministère de l’Équipement et des transports 
Bureau d'enquêtes sur les accidents et incidents d'aviation (BEA) 
Boîte Postale 6808, Nouakchott, Mauritanie   
Tel : +222 4448 1758 / 2243 7676 (24 hrs) 
www.transport.gov.mr 
IFALPA MA 
Association des Pilotes de Lignes de Mauritanie 
BP 2106, Nouakchott, Mauritanie 
Tel : +222 6346655 / 6416509 
 
 
MAURITIUS 
Department of Civil Aviation 
S.S.R. International Airport 
Plaine Magnien, Mauritius   
Tel : +230 603 2000 
IFALPA MA 
Mauritius Air Line Pilots Association (MALPA) 
SSR International Airport  
Plaine Magnien , Republic of Mauritius 
Tel : +230 467 2903 
www.malpa.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.transport.gov.mr/
http://www.malpa.org/


MEXICO 
Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGAC) 
Secretariat of Communications and Transportation 
Blvd. Adolfo López Mateos 1990, piso 4 
Col. Los Alpes Tlacopac, Del. Álvaro Obregón 
Codigo Postal 01010 
México, D.F., Mexico  
Tel : +52 55 5723 9400, ext. 18548 / 18545 
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion Sindical de Pilotos Aviadores de Mexico (ASPA) 
Palomas 110 
Col. Reforma Social 
Mexico, D.F. , 11650 Mexico 
Tel Emergency : +52 55 52 02 91 60 
Tel : +52 55 5091 5954 
www.aspa.org.mx 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero tolerance. Random testing for local crews before and after flight performed by 
CAA. Post-accident/incident testing.  If pilot refuses to test, medical is cancelled. 
Abstain from drinking alcohol 8 hrs before flight. 
 
MICRONESIA, (FEDERATED STATES OF) 
Division of Civil Aviation Administration 
Department of Transportation, Communications and Infrastructure 
P.O. Box PS-2 
Palikir, Pohnpei, FM 96941 
Federated States of Micronesia   
Tel : +691 320 2865 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
MOLDOVA, REPUBLIC OF 
Ministry of Economy and Infrastructure 
Permanent Commission on investigation of civil aviation aircraft events 
Piața Marii Adunări Naționale nr.1, 
Chișinău, MD-2012, Republic of Moldova 
Tel : +373 22 250-644 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.aspa.org.mx/


MONACO 
Service de l’Aviation Civile, Héliport de Monaco 
MC-98000 Monaco, La Principauté de Monaco 
Tel : +377 98 98 87 11 (office hours) 
       +336 07 93 28 38 (out-of-office hours) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
MONGOLIA 
Air Accident Investigation Bureau Mongolia 
Ministry of Road and Transportation of Mongolia 
CAAM-215 Khan-Uul district 
Buyant-Ukhaa 17120 
Ulaanbaatar, Mongolia 
Tel : +976 11 282026 
        +976 9595 3399 (24 hours) 
www.aaib.gov.mn 
IFALPA MA 
Mongolian Airline Pilots’ Association (MAPA) 
Room #403, MIAT Building 
Buyant Ukhaa 45 
Ulaanbaatar, 210134 
Tel Emergency +976 9905 5236 
Tel : +976  99112904 
 
 
MONTENEGRO 
National Commission for Investigation of Accident and Serious Incidents of aircraft,  
Djoko Mirasevic 19 
81000 Podgorica, Montenegro 
Tel.: (382) 69 066 223 (24/7 notifications) 
       (382) 20 652 160 
E-mail: prijava.kinns@kinns.me  (notifications) 
Fax: (382) 20 652 160 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.aaib.gov.mn/
mailto:prijava.kinns@kinns.me


MONTSERRAT 
See United Kingdom 
 
 
MOROCCO 
Secrétariat Général du Ministère du Transport et de la Logistique 
Bureau d'Enquête Technique sur les accidents et incidents d'aviation civile marocain 
Avenue Zaytoune, Hay Riad: 1073 
Rabat, Morocco 
Tel.: +212 5 38 01 24 95 
        +212 6 60 18 18 70  (24 hours) 
www.bea.aviationcivile.gov.ma  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
MOZAMBIQUE 
Instituto de Aviação Civil de Moçambique (IACM) 
Unidade de Prevenção e Investigação de Acidentes com Aeronaves (UPIAA) 
P.O. Box 227, Maputo, Mozambique  
Tel : +258 8250 25800 (Linha Verde) 
www.iacm.gov.mz 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
MYANMAR 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Bureau (AAIB) 
Room No. (7, 8, 9, 10) 
First Floor, 3rd Storeyed building 
Department of Civil Aviation 
Yangon 11021, Myanmar 
Tel : +95 1 533 162 
        +95 9 4210 33695 / 541 2862 (24/7 notification)        
www.dca.gov.mm 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 

http://www.bea.aviationcivile.gov.ma/
http://www.iacm.gov.mz/
http://www.dca.gov.mm/


NAMIBIA 
Directorate of Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation 
Private Bag 12042 
Ausspannplatz, Windhoek, Namibia 
Tel : +264 61 208-8411 / +264 811 441 970 (mobile)  
www.mwt.gov.na/aircraft-accidents-and-invesitigation 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
NAURU 
Director of Civil Aviation, Civil Aviation Authority 
Government Office, Yaren District, Nauru, Central Pacific 
Tel : +674 444 3113 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
NEPAL 
Aviation Safety and Civil Aviation Authority Supervision Division 
Ministry of Culture, Tourism and Civil Aviation 
Singha Durbar, Kathmandu, Nepal 
Tel : +977 1 421 1870 / 1847 
www.tourism.gov.np 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.mwt.gov.na/aircraft-accidents-and-invesitigation
http://www.tourism.gov.np/


NETHERLANDS 
Dutch Safety Board 
P.O. Box 95404, 2509 CK, The Hague, The Netherlands 
Tel : +31 70 333 70 00 
        +31 800 6353 688 / +31 70 333 7072 (24 hours) 
www.safetyboard.nl  
IFALPA MA 
Dutch Air Line Pilots’ Association (VNV) 
P.O. Box 192, , 1170 AD Badhoevedorp, The Netherlands 
Tel Emergency : +31 (0)20 449 8585  Mobile: +31 (0)622101053 
Tel : +31 (0)20 449 8585 
www.vnv.nl 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. Random testing before flight to local and foreign crews performed by 
police. Confirmatory and contra-test possible. Post-accident/incident testing. If pilot 
refuses, it is considered positive. Avoid drinking alcohol 10 hrs before flight, some 
companies say even 24 hrs before. 
 
 
NEW ZEALAND 
The Chief Executive Officer: Transport Accident Investigation Commission 
Level 16, 80 The Terrace, Wellington 6011, New Zealand 
Tel : +64 4 473 0199 (24 hours) / +64 4 473 3112 
www.taic.org.nz 
IFALPA MA 
New Zealand Air Line Pilot’s Association (NZALPA) 
PO Box 53-183, 3 Airpark Drive, Auckland Airport 1710, Mangere, New Zealand 
Tel Emergency : 0800 NZALPA (0800 69 25 72) [24hrs] 
+649 255 1500 if outside of New Zealand [24hrs] 
Tel : +64 9 255 1500 / +64 21 655 621 
www.nzalpa.org.nz 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random testing anytime for local crews performed by operators. Post-
accident/incident testing on some carriers, but not applied to foreign crews unless 
reasonable cause. Avoid drinking alcohol 10 hrs before flight. 
 

http://www.safetyboard.nl/
http://www.vnv.nl/
http://www.taic.org.nz/
http://www.nzalpa.org.nz/


NICARAGUA 
Agencia Nicaragüense de Investigación de Accidentes e Incidentes de Aviacion – ANIA 
KM 15½ Carretera Nueva a León, 
Mateares, Managua, Nicaragua, Código Postal: 15500, Apdo. Postal: 4936 
Tel : +505 8621 9623 
www.ania.gob.ni  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
NIGER 
Cellule chargée des Enquêtes Accidents et Inicidents d'aviation (CEAI) 
Agence Nationale de l'Aviation (ANAC), Ministère des Transports 
BP: 727 Niamey, Niger   
Tel : +227 20 72 32 67 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
NIGERIA 
Accident Investigation Bureau 
Murtala Muhammed International Airport 
P.M.B. 016, Ikeja, Lagos, Nigeria  
Tel : +234 807 709 0900 
        +234 807 709 0908 / 0909 (Emergency / accident lines) 
www.aib.gov.ng  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
NORTH MACEDONIA 
Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation Committee 
Bul. Partizanski odredi, No. 17a/1-1 
1000 Skopje, North Macedonia 
Tel : +389 2 5111 865 (RCC, 24 hours) 
        +389 76 494 940 (RCC, 24 hours) 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots Association of TFYR Macedonia 
Lerinska 57d/5, 1000 Skopje, TFYR Macedonia 
Tel Emergency : +389 702 25960 

http://www.ania.gob.ni/
http://www.aib.gov.ng/


NORWAY 
Accident Investigation Board Norway 
P. O. Box 213 
N-2001 Lillestrøm, Norway 
Tel : +47 63 89 63 00 / +47 63 89 63 20 (24H) 
www.aibn.no  
IFALPA MA 
Norsk Flygerforbund (NF) 
Drammensveien 43 
NO-0271 Oslo, Norway 
Tel Emergency : +47 920 55 311 / +47 957 14 043 / +47 926 37 028 
Tel : +47 6710 2610 (mobile 9323 5800) 
www.flyger.no 
 
 
OMAN 
Transport Safety Bureau 
Ministry of Transport Communications & Information Technology 
P.O. Box 684 P.C. 100, Muscat, Oman 
Tel : (968) 7211-1135 (hotline) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
PAKISTAN 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Board (AAIB) Pakistan 
CAA Offices Complex, Lehterar Road 
Rawalpindi – 47500, Pakistan 
Tel.: (92) 51 44 727 50 / +92 320 5311 280 (24 hours) 
IFALPA MA 
Pakistan Air Line Pilots’ Association (PALPA) 
ST-31, Block 5 Kehkashan 
Clifton Karachi-75600, Pakistan 
Tel : +92 21 3586 8860 
www.palpa.org.pk  
 
 

http://www.aibn.no/
http://www.flyger.no/
http://www.palpa.org.pk/


PALAU 
Ministry of Commerce and Trade 
P.O. Box 1471, Koror, Palau 96940 
Tel : +680 488 1116 / 587 2111 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
PANAMA 
Oficina de Investigación de Accidentes Aéreos (OFINVAA) 
Edificio 870 Ave. Cantfield, Aeropuerto Albrook de la Autoridad Aeronáutica Civil de 
Panama, Apartado 03073 y 03187 Panama 
Tel : +507 5244039 / +507 3159814 / +507 315 9849 
www.aeronautica.gob.pa 
IFALPA MA 
Union Panamena de Aviadores Comerciales (UNPAC) 
Ave. Balboa, Edificio P.H. Bay Mall 
Tercer Piso, Oficina 301 
APDO. 55-0686 Paitilla, Panama 
Tel Emergency : +507 6090 6177 
Tel : +507 263 9332 / +507 6070-5787 
www.unpac-panama.com 
 
 
PAPUA NEW GUINEA 
Accident Investigation Commission 
Level 1 NAQIA Haus 
Morea Tobo Rd, 6 Mile, P.O. Box 1709 
Boroko, NCD 111, Papua New Guinea 
Tel : +675 7837 8748 (24/7 Duty investigator) / +675 323 2951 
+675 7837 8749 (24/7 Duty investigator) / +675 323 2911 
www.aic.gov.pg  
IFALPA MA 
Papua New Guinea Air Pilots Association (PNGAPA) 
PO Box 754 
Edge Hill, Cairns, QLD 4870, Australia 
Tel : +61 7 4661 3020 / +44 77 87 900 
 

http://www.aeronautica.gob.pa/
http://www.unpac-panama.com/
http://www.aic.gov.pg/


PARAGUAY 
Centro de Investigación y Prevención de Accidentes Aeronáuticos 
Dirección Nacional de Aeronáutica Civil 
Aeropuerto Internacional “Silvio Pettirossi” 
Luque, Paraguay 
Tel : +595 21 645 599 / +595 21 646 114 (24 hrs) 
www.dinac.gov.py  
IFALPA MA 
Sindicato de Aeronavegantes de TAM (SAT) 
Calle Coronel Panchito Lopez 1258 
Asuncion, Paraguay 
Tel : + 595 21 481 160 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random testing for local crews before and after flight performed by the 
operator. If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Avoid drinking alcohol 24 hrs 
before flight. 
 
 
PERU 
Comisión de Investigación de Accidentes de Aviación – CIAA 
Ministerio de Transportes y Comunicaciones 
Jirón Zorritos 1203 – Piso 12D 
Lima – 1, Peru 
Tel : +511 615 7800 Anexo 1460 
www.gob.pe/institucion/mtc/colecciones/383-comision-de-investigacion-de-accidentes-
de-aviacion-ciaa 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
PHILIPPINES 
Civil Aviation Authority of the Philippines 
Ninoy Aquino Avenue corner MIA Road 
Pasay City 1301 Metro Manila, Philippines 
Tel : +63 2 879 9110 / 2 / 3 (OPCEN) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.dinac.gov.py/
http://www.gob.pe/institucion/mtc/colecciones/383-comision-de-investigacion-de-accidentes-de-aviacion-ciaa
http://www.gob.pe/institucion/mtc/colecciones/383-comision-de-investigacion-de-accidentes-de-aviacion-ciaa


POLAND 
Ministry of Infrastructure and Construction 
State Commission of Aircraft Accident Investigation (SCAAI) 
4/6 Chalubinskiego, 00-928 Warsaw, Poland 
Tel : +48 22 630 1131 / +48 22 630 1142 
       +48 500 233 233 (24 hours - event notification) 
pkbwl.gov.pl/ 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
PORTUGAL 
Gabinete de Prevençao e Investigação de Acidentes com Aeronaves e de Acidentes, 
Ferroviários (GPIAAF) 
Praça Duque de Saldanha, n.˚ 31, 4˚  
1050-094 Lisboa, Portugal 
Tel : +351 91 519 2963 (24 hours) 
        +351 21 273 9230 (general) 
www.gpiaaf.gov.pt 
IFALPA MA 
Associação dos Pilotos Portugueses de Linha Aérea (APPLA) 
Rua Frei Tome de Jesus, 8 
1749-057 Lisboa, Portugal 
Tel Emergency: +351 800 121 500 +351 93 932 27 64  
+351 93 793 45 00 
Tel +351 21 792 68 10 
www.appla.pt 
 
 
QATAR 
Qatar Air Accident Investigation 
3rd floor Al Sharq Tower 
Al Aaliya Street, St. No. 840 
Old Salata, Zone 18, P.O. Box 3000 
Doha, Qatar 
Tel : +974 4457 1313 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://pkbwl.gov.pl/
http://www.gpiaaf.gov.pt/
http://www.appla.pt/


ROMANIA 
Civil Aviation Safety Investigation and Analysis Authority (SIAA) 
38 Dinicu Golescu Blvd., District 1 
Bucharest 013695, Romania 
Tel : +40 21 222-0535 / +40 751 192 088 (24/7 - notifications) 
www.aias.gov.ro  
IFALPA MA 
Romanian Air Line Pilots Union 
Sindicatul Pilotlor de Linie din Romania 
Calea Bucurestilor nr. 224F 
Otopeni, Ilfov, Romania 
Tel Emergency : +40 21 204 1598 
 
 
RUSSIAN FEDERATION 
Federal Aviation Authorities of Russia 
State Oversight Flight Safety Department 
37 Leningradsky Prospect 
125167 Moscow, Russian Federation  
Tel : +7 095 155 5784 
Interstate Aviation Committee 
Accident Investigation Commission 
22/2/1 Bolshaya Ordynka Street 
119017 Moscow, Russian Federation 
Tel :  +7 495 953 5251 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
RWANDA 
Aviation Accident and Incident Investigation Directorate General 
Ministry of Infrastructure 
P.O. Box 24, Kigali, Rwanda 
Tel : +250 788387125 
www.mininfra.gov.rw 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.aias.gov.ro/
http://www.mininfra.gov.rw/


SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS 
See Eastern Caribbean States  
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SAINT LUCIA 
Se Eastern Caribbean States 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES 
See Eastern Caribbean States 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SAMOA 
Ministry of Transport: Civil Aviation, Marine and Shipping, P.O. Box 1607, Apia, Samoa 
Tel : +685 23 290 / 2 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SAN MARINO 
Ministry of Communications and Transport 
Via A. di Suberchio, 47898 Cailungo, San Marino 
Tel : +378 549 992 345 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SAO TOME AND PRINCIPE 
Direction de l’Aviation Civile 
C.P. 97, Sao Tomé, Sao Tomé-et-Principe 
Tel : +239 2 241450 (INAC Administration) / +239 9 903178 (Mobile) 
+239 2 225860 (Head of Investigation Commission) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 



SAUDI ARABIA 
Aviation Investigation Bureau (AIB) 
P.O. Box 6326, Jeddah 21442, Saudi Arabia 
Tel : +966 5577 24752 (Notification - 24/7) / +966 12 289 8732 (Office hours) 
www.aib.gov.sa 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SENEGAL 
Bureau d'Enquête et d'Analyse pour la sécurité de l'aviation civile 
Aéroport Leopold Sedar Senghor 
B.P. 38042 Dakar-Yoff, Dakar, Sénégal 
Tel : +221 33 865 6064 / 1267 / +221 770 999 791 (mobile) 
IFALPA MA 
Syndicat des Pilotes de Ligne Senegalais (SPLS) 
PO Box 29514, Dakar-Yoff, Senegal 
Tel Emergency : +221 776 424 572 
Tel : +221 338 6585559 
 
 
SERBIA 
Center for Investigation of Accidents in Transport of the Republic of Serbia 
Nemanjina 11 
11000 Belgrade, Serbia 
Tel : +381-11-414-4424 /  
+381-64-803-3509 (24 hours/mobile) 
http://www.cins.gov.rs/ 
IFALPA MA 
Serbian Cockpit Association 
Tel Emergency : +381 63 266 320 
Tel : +381 11 3284 961 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.aib.gov.sa/
http://www.cins.gov.rs/


SEYCHELLES 
Seychelles Civil Aviation Authority 
P.O. Box 181 Victoria, Mahé, Seychelles 
Tel : +248 438 4020 / 438 4011 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SIERRA LEONE 
Director of Civil Aviation 
Ministry of Transport and Communications 
Ministerial Office Block 
George Street, Freetown, Sierra Leone 
Tel : +232 22 22106 / 26191 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 

SINGAPORE 
Transport Safety Investigation Bureau  
Changi Airport Post Office 
P.O. Box 1005 
Singapore 918155 
Tel : +65 6541 2796 / 3042 / 6541 / +65 9826 2359 (Mobile) 
www.mot.gov.sg 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots Association – Singapore (ALPA-S) 
SIA Training Centre, SIN-CCB-AX1  
720 Upper Changi Road East 
Singapore 486852 
Tel Emergency : +65 9072 5727 (ALPA-S Hotline) 
Tel : +65 6540 3400 / +65 6545 0207 / +65 6542 3844 
www.alpas.org  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
No random testing. 
 
 
 

http://www.mot.gov.sg/
http://www.alpas.org/


SLOVAKIA 
Ministry of Transport, Construction, Regional Development of the Slovak Republic 
Specialized Unit, Námestie Slobody 6 
P. O. Box 100 
810 05 Bratislava 15, Slovakia 
Tel : +421 2 5949 4468 / +421 917 490 817 (mobile) 
www.mindop.sk  
IFALPA MA 
Slovak Air Line Pilots' Association 
Ivanska cesta 26 
P.O.Box 24 
820 
Slovakia 
 
 
SLOVENIA 
Air, Maritime and Railway Accident and Incident Investigation Unit 
Langusova 4 
SI-1535 Ljubljana, Slovenia 
Tel : +386 1 478 8000 (24 hours) / +386 1 478 8428 (office) 
         +386 31 655-206 (mobile) – notification 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots' Association of Slovenia 
c/o Adria Airways PS 
Brnik, Sl- 4210 
Ljubljana Airport 
Tel Emergency +386 41 335 033 
Tel +386 41 335033 / +386 41 742767 
 
 
SOLOMON ISLANDS 
Civil Aviation Division 
Ministry of Culture, Tourism and Aviation 
P.O. Box G20, Honiara, Solomon Islands 
Tel : +677 36561 / 3 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.mindop.sk/


SOMALIA 
Somali Civil Aviation Authority 
Flight Safety Division 
P.O. Box 1737 
Mogadishu, Somalia 
Tel : +252 1 20203 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SOUTH AFRICA 
Civil Aviation Authority 
Accidents and Incidents Investigation Division 
Private Bag X 73 
Halfway House 1685 
South Africa 
Tel : +27 (0) 11 545 1055/1050 / +27 (0) 60 991 9915 (24 hours) 
http://www.caa.co.za/Pages/Accidents%20and%20Incidents/How-to-report-
accident.aspx  
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots' Association - South Africa (ALPA-SA) 
P. O. Box 796 
Kempton Park 1620, South Africa 
Tel Emergency : +27 828265007 
Tel : +27 11 394 5310 
www.alpa.co.za  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. No random testing. Post-accident/incident testing. If pilot refuses to test, 
it is considered positive. Avoid drinking alcohol 8 hrs before flight. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.caa.co.za/Pages/Accidents%20and%20Incidents/How-to-report-accident.aspx
http://www.caa.co.za/Pages/Accidents%20and%20Incidents/How-to-report-accident.aspx
http://www.alpa.co.za/


SPAIN 
Comisión de Investigación de Accidentes e Incidentes de Aviación Civil 
Ministerio de Transportes, Movilidad y Agenda Urbana 
C\Fruela, 6 — 1ª planta 
28011 Madrid, Spain 
Tel : +34 91 597 8960 / +34 91 597 8900 (24 hours) 
www.ciaiac.es 
IFALPA MA 
Sindicato Espanol de Pilotos de Lineas Aereas (SEPLA) 
General Diaz Porlier, 49 - 3 
28001 Madrid, Spain 
Tel Emergency : +34 649 092 801 (24 hrs) 
Tel : +34 91 309 6751 
www.sepla.es  
 
 
SRI LANKA 
Civil Aviation Authority of Sri Lanka 
No. 152/1, Minuwangoda Road 
Katunayake, Sri Lanka 
Tel : +94 11 225 7137 / +94 11 235 8817 / 8819 (office hours)   
www.caa.lk  
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots' Guild of Sri Lanka (ALPGSL) 
216/45, Diyawanna Place, Welikada, Rajagiriya 
Tel Emergency : +94 77 3011803 (mobile) 
Tel : +94 11 2884744/+94 11 5633633 
 
 
ST. HELENA 
See United Kingdom 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ciaiac.es/
http://www.sepla.es/
http://www.caa.lk/


SUDAN 
Air Accident Investigation Central Directorate 
Civil Aviation Authority 
P.O. Box 430, Khartoum, Sudan 
Tel : +249 15 577 5152 / +249 91 291 9213 (mobile) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SURINAME 
Permanent Secretary: Ministry of Transport, Communications and Tourism 
Prins Hendrikstraat 26-28, Paramaribo, Suriname 
Tel : +597 420 100 / 420 422 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SWAZILAND 
Swaziland Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation Department (AAIID) 
P.O. Box D361, The Gables, H126, Swaziland 
Tel : +268 2 518 4344 / 4345 
        +268 7 604 4310 (24 hrs primary) / +268 7 605 3089 (24 hrs secondary) 
www.swacaa.co.sz 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
SWEDEN 
Swedish Accident Investigation Authority 
P.O. Box 12538 
102 29 Stockholm, Sweden 
Tel.: (46) 8 5088-6200 
http://www.havkom.se 
IFALPA MA 
Svensk Pilot Förening 
Wallingatan 44 A 
SE-111 24, Stockholm, Sweden 
Tel Emergency : +46 (0) 8 228 000 
Tel : +46 (0) 8 10 33 11 / +46 (0) 8 10 9434 
www.swealpa.se  

http://www.swacaa.co.sz/
http://www.havkom.se/
http://www.swealpa.se/


SWITZERLAND 
Swiss Transportation Safety Investigation Board (STSB) 
Aviation Division 
Aéropôle 1, CH-1530 Payerne, Switzerland 
Tel : +41 58 466 3300 / +41 333 333 333 (24-hour — ask for STSB) 
www.sust.admin.ch 
IFALPA MA 
Aeropers - Swiss Air Line Pilots' Association 
Ewiges Wegli 10 
CH – 8302, Kloten, Switzerland 
Tel Emergency : +41 (0) 44  816 9150 
Tel : +41 (0) 44 816 9070 
www.aeropers.ch 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. No random testing. If pilot refuses to test, may be prosecuted. No post-
accident/incident testing. Avoid drinking alcohol 8 hrs before flight. 
 
 
SYRIA 
Directorate General of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 6257, Damascus, Syrian Arab Republic 
Tel : +963 11 3331306 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
TAJIKISTAN 
Ministry of Transport 
Accident Investigation Commission 
14 Ayni Street 
734042 Dushanbe 
Tajikistan 
Tel : +992 3722 11439 / 3725 10278 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
 

http://www.sust.admin.ch/
http://www.aeropers.ch/


TANZANIA, UNITED REPUBLIC OF  
The Chief Inspector of Air Accidents 
Air Accident Investigation Branch 
P.O. Box 2819 
Dar es Salaam, United Republic of Tanzania 
Tel : +255 22 212 1530 
       +255 22 213 7650 /6 
www.mot.go.tz 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
THAILAND 
The Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation Commission 
38 Ratchadamnoen Nok Road, Wat Sommanat 
Pom Prap Sattru Phai, Bangkok 10100, Thailand 
Tel : +66 2 287 3198 (Office hours) / +66 2 286 0594 / 285 5451(24 hours) 
IFALPA MA 
Thai Pilots’ Association (THAIPA) 
3rd Floor, 5th Building, Thai Airways International Head Office, 89 Vibhavadi Rangsit Rd 
Bangkok 10900 
Tel Emergency : +66 88 8588825 
Tel :+66 2 545 4046 or +66 81 8135968 
www.thaipa.net  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. No random testing. If performed, by CAA. 
Post-accident/incident testing. If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Avoid 
drinking alcohol 8 hrs before flight. 
 
 
TIMOR-LESTE 
Committee of Prevention and Investigation of Aeronautical 
Accident and Incident (SPIAA) 
Avenida Xavier do Amaral, No. 8 Caicoli 
Dili, Timor-Leste 
Tel : +670 3310246 / + 670 78570618 (24 hours) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 

http://www.mot.go.tz/
http://www.thaipa.net/


TOGO 
Commission Permanente Indépendante, Enquêtes Accidents d'Aviation (CPI-EAA) 
Aéroport International Gnassingbe Eyadema, Ancienne Tour de Contrôle (Batîment 
CDOU) - 1er Étage - Porte 10 
10 B.P. 10152  Lomé 10 
Lomé, Togo 
Tel : +228 2222 1818 / +228 2223 6111 / 6131 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
TONGA 
Ministry of Civil Aviation 
P.O. Box 845 
Queen Salote Road 
Nuku’alofa, Tonga 
Tel : +676 24 144 / +676 24 045 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 
Director General Civil Aviation 
Trinidad and Tobago Civil Aviation Authority 
P.O. Box 2163, National Mail Centre 
Golden Grove Road, Piarco, Trinidad and Tobago 
Tel : 1 +868 668 8222 / +1 868 681 2559 (mobile) 
www.caa.gov.tt 
IFALPA MA 
Trinidad & Tobago Airline Pilots Association (TTALPA) 
35A Brunton Road 
St. James, Trindad, West Indies 
Tel Emergency : +1 868 398 9559 
Tel : +1 868 628 6556 / +1 868 628 2418 or US: +1 954 762 7068 
www.ttalpa.com 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Random testing to local crews only, before and after flight performed privately. Post-
accident/incident testing. If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Avoid drinking 
alcohol12 hrs before flight. 

http://www.caa.gov.tt/
http://www.ttalpa.com/


TUNISIA 
Bureau des Enquêtes et Accidents : Ministère du Transport 
13, Rue Borjine 1073 
Montplaisir, Tunis 
Tel : +216 71 905 863 / +216 71 848 000 ext. 33345 / 34873 (24 hours) 
IFALPA MA 
Fédération Tunisienne des Pilotes de Lignes (FTPL) 
16, Rue Ali Ibn Abi Taleb 
Menzah 6 CP 2080, Tunis 
Tel Emergency : +216 223 10600 or +216 223 16672 
Tel : +216 223 10600 
 
 
TURKEY 
Ministry of Transport and Infrastructure 
Transport Safety Investigation Center 
Hanimeli Sokak No. 7 
06430 Sihhiye Cankaya 
Ankara, Turkey 
Tel : +90 312 203 1431 
www.ulasimemniyeti.gov.tr 
IFALPA MA 
Turkey Airline Pilots Association (TALPA) 
Senlikkay Mahallesi, Avcilar Sokak  
No:43, Florya, 34153 Istanbul 
Tel Emergency : +90 505 795 5555 
Tel : +90 212 662 12 01 
www.talpa.org 
 
 
TURKMENISTAN 
Department of Transport and Communications 
National Civil Aviation Administration 
Chary Nurymov Street, 3a 
744000 Ashgabad, Turkmenistan 
Tel : +993 12 35 10 52 / 511804 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.ulasimemniyeti.gov.tr/
http://www.talpa.org/


TURKS AND CAICOS 
See the United Kingdom 
 
UGANDA 
The Chief Investigator: Ministry of Works and Transport 
Aircraft Accident and Incident Investigation Unit 
P.O. Box 7174, Kampala, Uganda 
Tel : +256 414 320 135 / 414 321 364 
www.works.go.ug  
IFALPA MA 
Uganda Professional Pilots Association (UPPA) 
Trust House Airport Road  
P.O.Box 260,Entebbe, Uganda  
Tel Emergency : +256 773657136; +256705776642 
www.uppa.ug 
 
 
UKRAINE 
National Bureau for Incidents and Accidents Investigation 
of Civil Aircraft (NBAAI) 
Prospekt Peremohy 14 
01135 Kyiv, Ukraine 
Tel : +380 44 351-4338 (24 hrs) 
www.nbaai.gov.ua 
IFALPA MA 
Ukrainian Air Line Pilots Association 
5 Levanevsky Street  
Kiev 03058, Ukraine 
Tel : +38 (0) 50 954 90 60 /+38 (0) 50 383 68 88 / +38 (0) 50 330 60 03 
Tel : +38 (0) 44 353 73 14 
www.ualpa.org.ua 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.works.go.ug/
http://www.uppa.ug/
http://www.nbaai.gov.ua/
http://www.ualpa.org.ua/


UNITED ARAB EMIRATES 
General Civil Aviation Authority 
Air Accident Investigation Sector 
P.O. Box 6558, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 
Tel : +971 2 405 4333 / 4445 / +971 50 641 4667 (hotline) 
        +971 50 661 2336 / 615 3730 (mobiles) 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
UNITED KINGDOM 
Air Accidents Investigation Branch: Department for Transport (DfT),  
Farnborough House  
Berkshire Copse Road 
Aldershot, Hampshire, GU11 2HH, United Kingdom 
Tel : +44 1252 510300 (switchboard - office hours) 
        +44 1252 512299 (24 hrs notifications) 
www.aaib.gov.uk 
IFALPA MA 
British Airline Pilots Association (BALPA) 
BALPA House 
5 Heathrow Boulevard 
278 Bath Road 
West Drayton, UK 
Tel Emergency : +44 (0) 208  476 4099 (24hrs) 
Tel : +44 (0) 208 476 4000 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. No random testing (plans to include post testing underway). Foreign 
crews tested only with a cause. Police performs testing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.aaib.gov.uk/


UNITED STATES 
National Transportation Safety Board 
490 L’Enfant Plaza East, SW 
Washington, DC 20594, United States 
Tel : +1 202 314 6290 (24 hours) 
www.ntsb.gov 
IFALPA MA 
Air Line Pilots Association (USA) 
1625 Massachusetts Avenue, NW 
Washington DC 20036, USA 
Tel Emergency : +1 703 892 4180 / +1 202 797 4180 (24 Hrs) 
Tel : +1 703 689 2270 
www.alpa.org  
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Tolerance 0.02. Random testing before and after flight posible to local crews. Foreign 
crews may be tested with probable cause. Operator performs testing. Post-
accident/incident testing. 
If pilot refuses to test, it is considered positive. Avoid drinking alcohol 8 hrs before fight. 
 
 
URUGUAY 
Comisión Investigadora de Accidentes de Aviación (C.I.A.I.A.) 
5519 Av. de las Industrias Wilson Ferreira Aldunate (ex Camino Carrasco) 
CP 14002 Canelones 
Uruguay 
Tel : +598 2601 4851 (Monday to Friday 11:00 to 19:00 UTC) 
+598 2604 0408 int: 5146 ( Monday to Friday 11:00 to 19:00 UTC) 
+598 098 592 110 (H24) 
www.mdn.gub.uy/?q=ciaia-inicio 
IFALPA MA 
Asociacion Civil de Pilotos de Lineas Aereas (ACIPLA) 
Tel Emergency : +598 99 622 354 
DRUG & ALCOHOL POLICY 
Zero Tolerance. Random testing to local crews performed by CAA before and after 
flight. If pilot refuses, it is considered positive. Avoid drinking alcohol 8 hrs before flight. 
 

http://www.ntsb.gov/
http://www.alpa.org/
http://www.mdn.gub.uy/?q=ciaia-inicio


UZBEKISTAN 
Department for the investigation of aviation occurrences and incidents: Ministry of 
Transport 
73B Nukus Street, Tashkent 100015, Uzbekistan 
Tel.: +998 78-120-00-65 / +998 93 501-56-29 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
VANUATU 
Director of Civil Aviation, Pacific Building 
Private Mail Bag 068, Port-Vila, Vanuatu 
Tel : +678 22819 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
VENEZUELA 
Dirección General de la Oficina Administrativa de Seguridad del Transporte 
Av. Francisco de Miranda, Torre MTT, Piso 20 
Chacao, Caracas 1060, Venezuela 
Tel : +58 201 3906 / 3912 / 3921 / 3933 / 3924 
        +58 414 278 7391 / 416 623 3154 / 414 299 2586 / 416 623 4891 
www.mppt.gob.ve 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
VIETNAM 
Director, Flight Safety Standard Department, Civil Aviation Administration 
119 Nguyen Son St., Ha Noi 10000, Viet Nam 
Tel : +844 3 827 1992 / +84 9721 22999 
NO IFALPA MA 
 
 
YEMEN 
Civil Aviation and Meteorology Authority: Civil Aviation Sector 
P.O. Box 7251, Sana’a, Yemen 
Tel : +967 1 337166 
NO IFALPA MA 

http://www.mppt.gob.ve/


ZAMBIA 
Aircraft Accident Investigation Board (AAIB) 
Former Zambia Airways Technical Base, 
Hangar 38/947M 
Kenneth Kaunda International Airport 
P.O Box 50137, Lusaka, 15101, Zambia
Tel : +260 211 251861 / 251677
NO IFALPA MA

ZIMBABWE 
Secretary for Transport and Infrastructural Development 
Ministry of Transport and Infrastructural Development 
Air Accidents and Incidents Investigation Department 
Kaguvi Building 
Corner 4th Street and Central Avenue 
Private Bag CY 595 
Causeway, Harare, Zimbabwe 
Tel : +263 242 700991-9 / +263 242 700109 / +263 242 702665 / +263 772927331 
www.caaz.co.zw 
NO IFALPA MA 

The information presented on local drug and alcohol laws and testing requirements is 
based on information available at the time, and current accuracy of this information 
cannot be guaranteed. The information is presented for general reference and 
educational purposes and should it not be relied upon to determine legal rights or 
obligations in any particular case without first confirming accuracy using current local 
authorities or local laws.

http://www.caaz.co.zw/
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